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Preface 
 

To commemorate the passage of 60 years since the beginning of the 
“modern” history of our congregation—the founding of the Unitarian 
Fellowship of Olympia in 1952—we have brought together here two ways 
that we celebrated the passage of the first fifty years, ten years ago. 

The first, 50 Years of Unitarian Universalism in Olympia, 1952-2002: A Short 
History of the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia, Washington, and the Olympia 
Unitarian Universalist Congregation in Words and Pictures, was the result of 
an Aural History project involving many members of the congregation.  It 
was compiled by Tim Ransom. 

The second consists of a series of short articles, written by long-time 
member Emily Ray, based on the congregation’s archives and her own 
memories, and published in our newsletter, The Unitariana, in 2002.  Emily 
has updated them for this publication. 

It is a truism that the past always seems to recede faster than the future 
arrives.  As Emily points out in her final essay, Capturing and Honoring Our 
History, we owe it to those who will follow in our footsteps to keep our 
history alive.  We offer these pages in hopes that they will help us 
understand better where we have come from, for only then can we truly 
know where we are going.   

 

Tim Ransom and Emily Ray, 2012 
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Glimpses into the Past  
 
 
Our Gathering Places 
 
Today we occupy a rose-brick building with over 10,000 square feet of space.  It 
was not always thus. 
 
The first public meeting of the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia was in 1952 at 
the former Olympia Community Center.  Through the years, the fledging group 
met in other places:  the Olympia YMCA, the Girl Scout Little House at 11th and 
Washington (since demolished), the basement of the Governor Hotel, and the 
Olympia Women’s Clubhouse. 
 
In 1968 we moved into the little white church at 2nd and B streets in Tumwater.  It 
had been built as a community church in 1872.  We purchased it from the 
Methodists for $10,000, paid in full before our occupancy.  Through the years we 
made a number of improvements while retaining the appearance of this building 
of statewide historical significance. 
 
In 1993 we built and moved to our present location at 2300 East End Street.  In 
2010 we completed a major construction project, adding a new religious 
education wing and a “commons” for socializing and dining.  In the process we 
enlarged the church administration office area and the kitchen with much 
needed work space and storage. 
 
In the near future we will remodel our space again, adding 1,587 square feet for a 
new sanctuary.  Our space will then include over 11,000 square feet! 
 
 
From UFO to OUUC 
 
The past 60 years have seen our church go “from UFO to OUUC.” 
 
In 1951, an Olympia attorney, Jerome Kuykendall, read a definition of the 
Unitarian religion in a Time Magazine article.  It so impressed him that he 
contacted the American Unitarian Association (AUA).  In the absence of any 
Unitarian church in the Olympia area he became a member of The Church of the 
Larger Fellowship.  Through this “church by mail” he began receiving sermons 
and other materials. 
 
A year later, AUA staff identified a handful of others in Olympia on the same 
mailing list.  They were Bartlett and Gladys Burns, Frederick Hamley, and Herb 
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Legg.  Kuykendall decided to pull the group together.  He also advertised his 
intentions in The Daily Olympian (as it was then called). 
 
The meeting attracted additional people who had been Unitarians elsewhere. 
More meetings followed.  The group decided to form a fellowship—that is, a 
church without a minister.  This decision was welcomed by the AUA, which had 
begun encouraging the formation of fellowships across the nation in the late 
1940’s.   
 
UFO—the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia-- was officially recognized as a 
member of the AUA on October 6, 1952.  There were 13 charter members.  Today, 
we have 270 members. 
 
 
Music to Delight the Senses and Soothe the Soul 
 
Today on many Sundays we enjoy the spine-tingling sound of a large choir 
directed by Troy Fisher, a professional musician, composer and actor.  We have a 
fine grand piano and electronic equipment for playing tapes and CDs, recording 
services and amplifying sound for our hard-of-hearing friends.  We enjoy guest 
performers and periodic choir concerts and participatory drumming circles.  We 
sing hymns during services.  Back in the 1950s our music scene was very 
different. 
 
The people who formed the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia were interested 
more in discussion than in music.  But some longed to sing during Sunday 
service, and they were persistent.  In 1953, almost a year after the Fellowship 
organized, the members tried group singing for the first time with hymnals 
borrowed from Tacoma.  A newsletter of the time said, “Those with attitudes for 
or against such a feature in the future are asked to make their feelings known to 
the program committee.”  In October the music committee was formed. 
 
In November 1955, the Fellowship voted to continue hymn singing. In 1958 the 
Worship Committee surveyed folks and found a variety of opinions regarding 
hymns.  For some people, hymns contained archaic concepts and were 
reminiscent of the traditional churches they sought to leave behind. 
 
The first chair of the Music Committee was Helen Christopher, who died in 2008. 
 
Eventually a piano was loaned to the Fellowship.  Later we were given the use of 
an organ owned by the Metropolitan Community Church, which rented the 
building.  The very sound of the organ caused one member to leave in a huff, 
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vowing not to return unless the instrument remained tightly closed.  (He drifted 
back anyway.) 
 
In 1993 the Unitarian Universalist Association published Singing the Living 
Tradition, the book we use today.  This compilation recast many old hymns and 
introduced new ones, giving us hymns suitable for the UU perspective.   
 
 
Professional Leadership 
 
On April 28, 2002, we installed the Rev. Arthur Vaeni in a splendid celebration.  
Arthur is the first minister we have called for full-time service since our ancestral 
fellowship began in 1952.  
 
Through the years many ministers visited to deliver sermons.  Our own Bill 
Arensmeyer, once ordained as a Methodist minister, filled the pulpit for a 
number of months.  In 1978 the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia took a big step, 
financially and philosophically, and called the Rev. Roger Otis Kuhrt.  He served 
us one-quarter time, at the same time serving the Tacoma church, until June 1985.  
Among his sermon titles: “The Yin and the Yang: Moral Decision Making.” 
 
In 1986, after a year of lay leadership, we called the Rev. Donna DiSciullo to 
serve us on a part-time basis.  A native of Boston, Donna had an accent that 
remains as unforgettable as her thought-provoking sermons and her attention to 
church governance.  At the close of three years, Donna moved to Princeton with 
her husband, a Congregational minister. 
 
The Rev. Sandra Lee became our part-time minister in 1989 and moved to full-
time status after several years.  A microbiologist by profession, Sandra was 
inspired to become a UU minister through her involvement in the Kitsap UU 
Fellowship.  Sandra hired Darlene Sarkela as our first paid office staff.  With 
Sandra in the pulpit, our numbers outgrew our space.  Her husband Don Bell 
found creative ways to finance our new land and building. 
 
In 1999, the Rev. Shirley Ranck joined us for a two-year, interim period.  Shirley 
was already well known to us as the author of Cakes for the Queen of Heaven, 
an investigation into the feminine roots of religion.  A clinical psychologist in her 
former life and an “interim minister” by choice, Shirley was able to help us come 
together as a community and articulate the qualities we wanted in our next 
minister.  Which brought us Arthur! 
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Summertime – When the Living Was Easy 
 
In the Fellowship days, summer was a quiet time for our community.  The doors 
were shut.  Services and religious education classes were suspended.  
Committees and the Board of Trustees generally took a long hiatus.   
 
In 1953, a year after its formation, the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia began a 
tradition of holding a summer picnic.  The early picnics were clam bakes at 
Barnacle Beach, the home of Alison and Frank Mathews.  In 1957, 89 people 
attended according to the astonished Unitariana editor. 
 
In 1961 the picnic relocated to land on Springer Lake owned by five Unitarian 
families, including that of OUUC member Phil Vandeman, who died in 2009.  
The tradition continued into the 1970s when that land was sold.  Then for a 
number of years Virginia Saibel hosted the picnics at her home on Hewitt Lake.  
After Virginia’s illness and death, the Unitarian community lost its annual 
swimming cum picnic event. 
 
In the ensuing years, picnics were held at Tolmie State Park, Tumwater 
Historical Park, and the home of member Mary Jane (Dexter) Allison, now 
deceased.  Sometimes we had three picnics, one for each summer month.  Sadly, 
during a few summers we missed having any. 
 
In 2002, our 50th anniversary year, we were invited to party at the farm of Lois 
Chowen and David Hare in the Independence Valley near Rochester.  There they 
had a number of intriguing out buildings, a lovely home, flourishing gardens, 
and a variety of animals.  Lois and David had hosted events for us a couple of 
times in the early 1990’s.  What better way to honor “Tradition!” than to 
reinstitute a summer picnic!   
 
 
Bringing Sweetness of the Past into the Present 
 
For many years we held a strawberry festival in June.  You might think it was 
just another excuse to consume a favorite treat while being jostled by friends.  
You’re partly right.  It was also a way to remember the earliest Unitarian 
presence in Olympia, 141 years ago. 
 
In 1871, the American Unitarian Association sent a minister-at-large to the Pacific 
Northwest.  The Rev. John Kimball established his headquarters in Olympia, 
Washington Territory.  The Washington Standard, local paper of the day, regularly 
announced his sermon topics.  An early one explored the Unitarian idea of 
salvation, taking up the question, “What is it we are saved from?”   
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In April 1872, the First Unitarian Society of Olympia became a member of the 
national association.  That summer, the church hosted a social event.  
Strawberries, shortcake and lemonade were served “by the hands of beautiful 
ladies,” the newspaper reported. 
 
That early church grew and prospered until an economic panic in 1893.  Within a 
few years the group was forced to sell its imposing building at 9th and Franklin 
streets.  The strawberry festival might have been lost to memory except for the 
diligent research of Gladys Burns, a founder of our Fellowship. 
 
In 1972, 20 years after its formation, the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia revived 
the strawberry festival.  And it has been celebrated periodically ever since.  Some 
years we’ve gone to the fields to pick the berries.  Some years we’ve purchased 
flats.  When the season has been late, we’ve even bought frozen berries and 
thawed them.  Whatever our means, we recreate an event with meaning, fusing 
the past with the present. 
 
 
Money Matters 
 
Financially speaking, life was simple in the early days of our parent organization, 
the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia (UFO).  With no property or staff—or 
hymnals—the main expense was renting a meeting room.   Even our newsletter, 
the Unitariana, was a minor expense.   
 
From the first, though, the Fellowship gave some thought to raising money.  The 
founding bylaws of 1952 established $1.00 as the membership fee.  (In 1956 the 
bylaws were revised to require $1.00 “from active members.”)  In addition to 
pledges for the Fellowship, people were asked to contribute to the United 
Unitarian Appeal and the Unitarian Service Committee.  In 1953, the 
Fellowship’s budget was $539, with $103 earmarked for the United Unitarian 
Appeal. 
 
By 1955 the budget had more than doubled, to $1300. That amount included an 
allocation of $100 toward the expenses of a member to attend the Pacific Coast 
Unitarian Council in Alameda, CA.  That year also saw the formation of a 
Fellowship Finance Committee chaired by Herb Legg. 
 
By 1963 the budget had crept up to $2000, with the lion’s share going to rental of 
the Olympia Women’s Clubhouse.  Some members professed to be developing 
“an edifice complex,” and the group began to look seriously at buying property. 
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Even after UFO bought the little white church at 2nd and B in Tumwater, costs 
remained relatively low for a number of years; the building had been purchased 
outright and the group was lay-led.  It wasn’t until we called a quarter-time 
minister that costs increased significantly.  Our budget 30 years ago was $16,842.  
 
In the 1980s we actually brought in an expert in church fund raising to teach us 
how to think about money and commitment.  Historically, Unitarians haven’t 
liked to talk about money, and so for many of us this was a difficult transition.  
In 2001 we established a Fund Raising Committee to orchestrate year-round 
events as well as the annual canvass for pledges. 
 
By 2002, our 50th anniversary, we had two buildings on adjoining land, a 
minister, church administrator, director of religious education, music director, 
custodian, and a multiplicity of programs.  Our annual budget was $247,000.  As 
people who value Unitarian Universalist principles, we have had to learn that 
money helps us actualize our values.   
 
Subsequently we built a wing for religious education, retained a part-time 
bookkeeper and a part-time volunteer coordinator, and boosted our religious 
education director to full time. 
 
Today our annual budget is on the order of $450,000, and we are embarking on a 
$1.3 million expansion of our sanctuary.       
 
 
Those Who Are Seen and Heard 
 
While the primary focus was on adults, religious education (RE) for children was 
a concern right from the start for the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia in 1952.  
An active cadre of committed adults—not just parents—ensured a continuing RE 
program for children.   
 
The historic “first” RE chair was Gladys “Mrs. Bartlett” Burns, one of the 
founders of the Fellowship.  Gladys traveled out of state to curriculum 
workshops and was responsible for introducing the materials of Sophia Lyons 
Fahs to the Fellowship.  These materials were the backbone of the children’s 
classes for many years, not just in Olympia but throughout the Unitarian 
movement. 
 
The expectation of an enrollment fee was established early.  In 1958 the cost was 
$1.00 per family.  Today the suggested donation is $40 per child and is intended 
to cover a portion of the RE cost.  Debate over whether to charge a registration 
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fee or to fully fund the RE program from the general revenues of the church 
arises periodically. 
 
The children’s Christmas program became an annual affair very early in the life 
of the Fellowship.  The 1955 performance was “How the Christ Child Got His 
Birthday” and was directed by Helen Christopher.  The ambitious nature of these 
programs is evident from the titles—for example, the 1965 performance was “A 
Medieval Christmas,” directed by Pat Holm and Dorothy Punderson. 
 
The number and combination of classes have undergone many changes.  In 1956 
the fellowship offered four classes:  nursery and kindergarten; 1 and 2; 3 and 4; 
and 5 through 7. In the face of fluctuating enrollments, space constraints and 
inconsistent adult participation, other configurations have been tried.  In 1965, 
children 3rd grade and up were divided into interest groups on art, drama and 
nature.  In the 1980s, we experimented with short field trips one Sunday each 
month, visiting local parks and nature trails. 
 
In 1993 we moved to our current building on East End Street.  With RE 
enrollment soaring, we at last recognized the need for paid professional 
leadership and hired our first RE Director, Penny Sodhi (now Chatfield).  She 
and Mary Ann Thompson, who followed in 1994, were both quarter time.  In 
1996, the position was expanded to half time and filled by Andy Bartels for three 
years.  Peggy Olsen-Missildine took the reins for a year in 1999, and in 2000, 
Steven Hendricks succeeded her.  He was followed by Sierra-Marie (Gerety) 
Gerfao.  Since 2008 Sara Lewis has served as fulltime director, overseeing 
programs for about 120 children from infants through high school in age. 

  
 
Retreats 
 
To the woods!” hisses the villain. “No, no, no,” whimpers the fair damsel in the 
old vaudeville skits.  The answer of Unitarians has always been, “Yes, yes, yes, to 
the woods!”   For our church community, a favorite way to build community has 
been through retreats. 
 
In our early days, the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia (UFO) did not sponsor its 
own retreats but participated in events put on by others.  The August 1962 
Unitariana advertised a family camp out at Black Mountain Boy Scout Camp near 
Bellingham.  It was described as “a new venture for the Unitarians who have 
enough stamina to combine convocations and conversation with KP.”  Cost for 
five days of campsite and two group meals was $25 per family.  
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More rustic adventures became available in 1966 when the Northwest 
Wilderness Society, an associate of the Pacific Northwest District, opened a 160-
acre wilderness camp on the shores of Kootenay Lake in British Columbia.  UFO 
founders Bart and Gladys Burns were among those who traveled the many miles 
to the camp nestled between the Selkirk and Purcell mountain ranges.  The camp 
is accessible only by boat; the last leg of the trip begins when aspirants signal the 
camp director.  In early years newcomers waved an orange tarp to request pick 
up.  Today, the boat comes to the pickup point at specified times—except in the 
case of bad weather or unless pre-arrangement by unreliable cell phone 
coverage.  (If stranded, you are instructed to pitch a tent and wait until the next 
day.) 
 
Eventually the local Unitarian community began planning and holding its own 
retreats.  At first these were billed as “family” retreats, but they were really all-
church events and were held at such sites as Fort Worden, Seabeck, Panhandle 
Camp, and Camp Solomon Schecter.  Despite their popularity, it was difficult to 
generate the energy for organizing them on an annual basis.  By contrast, 
women’s retreats, initiated by former member Gretchen Meyer at Gwinwood in 
1993, became firmly established at once and have happened annually ever since.   
 
In 2001 the first of several annual all-church retreats was held at Camp Seymour 
and was a resounding success.  The momentum has continued but with a change 
of venue; given families’ busy schedules, the event is now held at nearby 
Millersylvania State Park on Black Lake, with camping optional.  The all-church 
retreat has become an integral part of our church community.  To the woods! 
 
 
Social Activism 
 
In the early 1950s, Pat Guerin delivered a talk titled “Loyalty Oaths and Our 
Security Program” to the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia (UFO).  It was the 
McCarthy era, and the concerns of Pat and other UFO members were eerily 
similar to those of today. 
 
Public expressions of conscience are integral to Unitarian Universalism.  From 
the earliest days, our members and friends have actively sought to create a better 
world in a variety of ways.  And since 9-11 Rev. Arthur Vaeni has shared his 
concerns about the erosion of civil liberties in the name of national security in the 
pulpit and in columns in The Olympian.   
 
Early on, a dearth of local mental health services was a major issue for members 
of the Fellowship.  They didn’t just worry, they acted.  The Unitariana of May 
1958 reported that the Thurston County Mental Health Association “has an 
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almost embarrassing number of Unitarians among its leaders, with Harry 
Parmalee as President, Jeanette Whitcher as Vice-President, and Gladys Burns, 
Jean Ross, Warren Winslow, Bonnie Hansen, and Buck Harmon as Board 
Members.”  
 
UFO member Alison Mathews co-chaired the successful candidacy of Pearl 
Wanamaker for Superintendent of Public Instruction in 1956.  Other UFOers on 
the campaign steering committee were Phil Vandeman and Herb Legg.  Herb 
was elected to the post of Olympia Commissioner of Public Works the same year.  
Alison later ran unsuccessfully for our state House of Representatives.  The 
public’s loss was Unitarianism’s gain, however, because she put her energy into 
leadership positions in the Northwest District and national Unitarian 
organization. 
 
Other early UFO members held significant positions related to their professional 
fields.  Two were Maurice “Buck” Harmon, who in 1961 became president of the 
National Association of Training Schools and Juvenile Offenders; and Dr. Barney 
Bucove, who in 1964 was elected president of the Association of State and 
Territorial Health Officers.   
 
In the late 1960s and 1970s, the Fellowship was involved in draft counseling and 
Native American rights, among many other causes.  Within recent years our local 
church has taken on issues of hunger, homelessness, racism, economic 
globalization, homophobia, marriage equality, and more.  Our denomination 
takes positions on pressing issues and through lobbyists is a moral and ethical 
presence at the United Nations and the U.S. Congress.  On the world stage and at 
home, the tradition of involvement continues. 
 
 
“Unitariana” Through the Years 
 
The early newsletters of the Unitarian Fellowship of Olympia (UFO) were typed 
manually on onionskin interleaved with carbon paper.  Eventually, UFO 
founders Bart and Gladys Burns purchased a mimeograph machine.  They 
donated it to the YMCA with the agreement that UFO could bring in paper and 
print the newsletter there.   
 
Darlene Sarkela, church administrator, started working for OUUC in 1991.  At 
that time she shared a tiny office with the minister. The single computer was 
used primarily for preparing the Sunday order of service, and copies were made 
downtown at Olympia Copy Printing Center.   
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The move to the new building on East End Street in 1993 brought separate offices 
for the minister and church administrator. It also brought a copy machine and a 
new computer. The order of service and newsletter could now be duplicated in 
the church office.  
 
In recent years, the church has encouraged digital subscriptions.  As a 
consequence, colors and more photos have been added.  The publication is more 
web friendly (e.g., articles only one page vs. continuing on another page as in 
print).  Live web links are added whenever possible.  
 
In a bow to privacy concerns, personal phone numbers and addresses have been 
eliminated, with email contact the only way to reach individuals.  
 
Editor Linda Crabtree says our congregation is very tech savvy.  “The next 
iteration of the newsletter is pending.  I don’t know what it will look like yet but 
stay tuned.” 
 
 
And More Changes in Technology 
 
For many years, bookkeeping was done on paper by a volunteer treasurer.  After 
the move to the new building on East End Street in 1993, bookkeeping was 
computerized. Church data was now managed by a program specifically created 
for church management, Church Windows.  Eventually, the onerous chore of 
bookkeeping was separated from the board position of Treasurer, and a part-
time specialist hired to keep the books.  We had become a big business, with 
multiple accounts and detail to manage. 
 
The new sanctuary included a sound system with devices to assist the hearing 
impaired.   
 
Our website was created in 1995.  (OUUC was the first church to list a website 
address in the Olympian advertisement!) 
 
2005 brought more email communication with the creation of googlegroups - 
email groups that were used to send messages to the congregation or to groups 
created for specific committees or efforts, such as Caring Friends. 
 
 "This Week at OUUC" started in 2007. The building expansion brought more 
upgrades in technology - a new multi-line phone system with individual 
mailboxes for staff, electronic door locks with key cards, a video monitor in the 
Commons, and two computers at the visitor's kiosk.  
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Recent years have brought the following: an online calendar; online photo 
directory; podcast of the sermons on the website; online forms to sign up for 
classes, retreats and events; an online payment page; a smartphone payment 
page app; improved weekly announcements and newsletter emails (with the 
majority of people receiving the newsletter by email); many members receiving 
giving statements by email; a Facebook page; and a cloud version of our church 
management software (making it available to multiple users, and at any 
location). 
 
 
And Looking to the Future in 2012 
 
Imagine the astonishment of the Rev. John Kimball, should our 1871 pioneer 
Unitarian minister arrive in Olympia today.  In his capacity of “minister at large” 
for the Pacific Northwest, he was dependent on his horse and slow postal service 
to reach his congregants.  He could have benefited from today’s technological 
advances. 
 
Changes in technology will continue to delight the proficient and confound the 
Luddites among us.  Eventually, all of the forms we use may be interactive—thus 
able to be completed online.  With scan-able membership cards, people could 
sign up for classes and events.  A more responsive membership database would 
allow us more easily to track visitors, new and old members, make name tags, 
and give us a better feel for our demographics.   
 
The high finance demands of our annual auction have driven some of our 
advances in technology.  On the wish list is a web-based auction program 
developed by another UU church.  Features include the ability for people to enter 
their own items, access their invoices, see who else is going to an event, and 
create a calendar of events. It also automatically emails the donor and 
participants when the date of an event is approaching. It even saves data from 
year to year.  
 
The future will bring the installation of security cameras (already purchased).  It 
will also bring OUUC online access to neighborhood groups (for carpooling, 
disaster preparedness and socializing) and an OUUC smartphone app. Both of 
these are in the planning stage. And who knows?  We may eventually have UU 
satellite locations via which we could broadcast the worship service in real time 
over the internet to satellite groups in Aberdeen or Chehalis!   We have left the 
horse and buggy days far behind. 
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Capturing and Honoring Our History 
 
In 1981 the Pacific Northwest District of the Unitarian Universalist Association 
undertook a project to document the district’s history. Gladys Burns, one of our 
Olympia church’s founding members and an early president of the district 
board, led the effort.   
 
The project grew and grew and consumed the next nine years of her life. The 
result was the publication in 1991 of OUR STORIES:  A 25 Year History of the 
Pacific Northwest District of the Unitarian Universalist Association 1962-1987.  I 
immediately bought a copy, took it home, and, well, put it away.  Our church’s 
50th anniversary as a continuous society in Olympia prompted me to pick it up 
again.  I’m pleased to say that in 2002 I at last read this fascinating history. 
 
The 249-page book is superbly organized.  Section I is a year-by-year chronology.  
Each year begins with significant continental events (until 2002 we were a 
Canada - US organization) providing a social and political context for our 
denomination’s activities.  But the real “life” is in the taped conversations with 
district leaders.  The leaders revealed not only the challenges and 
accomplishments of their time in office but also something of their spiritual 
journeys. 
 
Section II is a history of the district committees and associates, such as the 
Women and Religion Committee on which Diana Larsen-Mills and I served.  
And Section III explores the Pacific Coast connections with the continental 
organization starting in 1850. 
 
A look at the credits reminds me that our members Jeanette Whitcher, Joe Joy 
and Diana assisted Gladys in producing the book, too. 
 
In her preface, Gladys wrote:  “OUR STORIES is our gift to our present day 
readers and a legacy to other historians who we hope, twenty-five years beyond 
our 1987 stopping point, will be motivated to write the story of our second 
twenty-five years.”  Folks, that’s the year 2012, this year!  History is being made 
with every passing minute.  
 
OUR STORIES gives an excellent district and denominational context to our 
church’s growth and development.  Other valuable sources are our boxes of 
board notes, orders of service, Unitariana newsletters, and other miscellaneous 
records.  I made a foray into their dusty contents, but admit much more 
information can be mined in their depths. 
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OUUC’s 60th anniversary is an opportunity to become more resolute about 
capturing and telling our local church’s history.  Do we need a committee, some 
specific policies, a trained records manager?  I hope we will find a way as an 
organization to become more mindful about our history, for the benefit of our 
successors at home and in the district.   
 
Emily Ray 
2012 
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